
    NOTICE:  This meeting will be recorded. 

Washington State 

Criminal Justice Training Commission 
Location:  WSCJTC Auditorium - Burien, WA 

Commission Chair:  
Councilman De’Sean Quinn, 
King County 
Phone: 206/331-5939 
Email: 
desean.quinn@commissioner.cjtc.wa.gov 

Commission Vice Chair:  
Chief Penelope Sapp, Kitsap County Jail 
Phone: 360/337-4514 
Email: 
Penelope.sapp@commissioner.cjtc.wa.gov 

Executive Director:  
Monica Alexander, WSCJTC 
Phone: 206/835-7372 
Email: monica.alexander@cjtc.wa.gov 

Executive Assistant:  
Tracy Thornburg, WSCJTC 
Phone: 206/835-7372 
Email: tracy.thornburg@cjtc.wa.gov 

December 13, 2023 – 10 a.m. 

 Welcome

 Roll Call

 Chair’s Report

 Director’s Report
• Certification Report
• Certification Glossary

 Old Business
• Independent Investigation Team 

(IIT) Best Practices - Ad Hoc 
Committee Update

 New Business
• Meeting Minutes (September 2023)
• Canine Evaluator Application
• Commission Meeting Remote

Participation Request 

 Adjourn

 

Chair Quinn 

Tracy Thornburg 

Chair Quinn 

Executive Director Alexander 
Assistant Director Bliss 

Chair Quinn 
Commissioner Scairpon/ 
Alex Buijs 

Chair Quinn 

Valerie Jenkins-Weaver 

Chair Quinn 

Chair Quinn 

 



Certification: By the numbers as of 11/30/2023 
 

  

  
 

 

Quarterly Tracking (September - November 2023) 
Intake (Total) 227  Closed (Total) 142 

     CJ Form 1915 Reporting 142      Denied Certification 1 
     Complaints 41      Revocation (Default) 14 
     NOS Misconduct  34      Revocation  3 
     Division Initiated 10      Decline 22 

Assigned for Investigation 64      Administrative Closure 102 
Administrative Review 27 Sent to Hearing Coordinator 18 

Sent to AAG 3 Executive Director Review 0 

 

Forms Processing 
 Quarter (September - November) YTD 

Notice of Hire (NOH) 419 1566 

Notice of Separation (NOS) 278 1235 
% of NOS Reporting Misconduct 12.2% 7.3% 

  
 



 
(2/2022) 

 

INTEROFFICE COMMUNICATION 
 

 
 

TO: WSCJTC Commissioners  

FROM: Kimberly Bliss, Assistant Director/Certification   

SUBJECT: Certification Report Glossary  

DATE: November 30, 2023  

 
 
  

At the last Commission meeting, several Commissioners had questions about the data included in 
the quarterly Certification Report.  Additionally, the Commission requested a “Glossary” that 
defines the categories of data included in the report.   
 
We want to thank you for your informative feedback.  We have endeavored over the last quarter to 
redesign and refine the Certification Division data tables to clearly communicate the status of 
certification cases year-to-date and in the three months since the last Commission meeting.  In your 
final packet for the December meeting, you will receive (what we hope is) a more user-friendly data 
report.  In the meantime, the Certification Division has drafted the attached Glossary to explain the 
various categories of data included in the upcoming data tables.   
 
We look forward to your further questions and feedback at the December 13th meeting. 

KAB:ng 
Attachment (1)  
 

 
  
  
   

        
        

  
 

 

 WASHINGTON STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 
 



 Quarterly Cer�fica�on Report Glossary 

 

Approved 11/27/2023 
 

YTD Intake Chart - Chart represen�ng all cases complaints, CJ Form 1915 Repor�ng, Division Ini�ated, and No�ces of 
Separa�on where misconduct is reported for each month of the current year.  

Status Chart – Chart represen�ng the status of all cases currently open.  

• Intake – Cases in Intake status. The Cer�fica�on Division receives a complaint or agency report, logs the incident, and 
assigns a case number. For complaints, the complainant is no�fied their complaint has been received and provided a 
case number. 

• Intake Review – Cases that are being reviewed by the Chief Inves�gator or Opera�ons Manager to determine if the 
complaint or agency report alleges misconduct which, if true, would invoke the WSCJTC’s authority under RCW 
43.101.105.  

• Inves�ga�on – Cases under ac�ve inves�ga�on. A WSCJTC inves�gator conducts a fair, independent, objec�ve, 
thorough, and �mely inves�ga�on and completes an inves�ga�on report. 

• Administra�ve Review – Cases in Administra�ve Review status. The Chief Inves�gator, Opera�ons Manager, Division 
Manager, and Assistant Director review the inves�ga�on. At each level of administra�ve review, the inves�ga�on 
report is either approved or returned to the inves�gator for addi�onal inves�ga�on.   

• AAG – Cases currently under review with the Assistant Atorney General for poten�al issuance of a Statement of 
Charges. 

• Hearing Coordinator – Cases undergoing the hearing process. 
• Execu�ve Director Review – Cases under review with the Execu�ve Director. 

Case Origin Chart – Chart showing the origin of cases received in the current year.  

• CJ Form 1915 Repor�ng – Cases ini�ated based on a CJTC Form 1915: Agency Report from an employing agency. 
• Complaint – Cases ini�ated a�er a complaint was submited alleging peace or correc�ons officer misconduct. 
• NOS Misconduct – Cases where a Notice of Separation (NOS) form indicated that the officer resigned/re�red in lieu of 

termina�on or that they were under inves�ga�on for any wrongdoing or misconduct upon separa�on.  
• Division Ini�ated – Cases the WSCJTC ini�ated on its own without the submission of an agency report, complaint, or 

NOS marked for misconduct.  

Closed Case Outcomes – Chart represen�ng the outcomes of cases closed in the current year.  

• Surrendered cer�fica�on – The officer surrendered their cer�fica�on voluntarily. 
• Revoca�on – The officer’s cer�fica�on was revoked by the decision of the hearing panel.  
• Revoca�on (Default) – The officer did not request a hearing and their cer�fica�on was automa�cally revoked. 
• Expired cer�fica�on – The officer’s cer�fica�on expired. 
• Eligibility reinstated – The WSCJTC granted a pe��on to reinstate cer�fica�on or permit eligibility for reinstatement of 

cer�fica�on. 
• Denied cer�fica�on – The WSCJTC determined not to grant cer�fica�on to a prospec�ve peace or correc�ons officer.   
• Decline - A�er an inves�ga�on, the WSCJTC determined that misconduct did not occur or that it would be unable to 

prove qualifying misconduct under the preponderance of the evidence standard. 
• Administra�ve closure – The complaint or agency report is closed without inves�ga�on because the conduct or officer 

falls outside WSJTC’s authority, the WSCJTC is unable to iden�fy the subject officer or ac�onable allega�ons, or the 
alleged conduct has already been addressed in another case.  

Monthly Tracking – Sec�on represen�ng totals for the quarter indicated.  Same defini�ons as above. 

Forms Processing – Sec�on represen�ng the agency reports cer�fica�on receives by month and year. 

• No�ce of Hire (NOH) – The employing agency submits a CJTC Form 1903 to WSCJTC repor�ng a newly hired officer.  
• No�ce of Separa�on (NOS) – The employing agency submits a CJTC Form 1902 repor�ng the officer’s separa�on. 



 

 

IIT Best Practices 
Ad Hoc Committee Work Plan 

 

 
COMMITTEE 

MEMBERS 

 
Commissioners Nickeia Hunter, Bart Logue, Trishandra Pickup, Tim Reynon, 
Erik Scairpon, and Annalesa Thomas. 

 

 

AUTHORIZING 
REGULATION 

 WAC 139-12-030 (4)(b) - “The independent investigation will follow accepted 
best practices for homicide investigations published and annually updated by the 
WSCJTC.” 

 

G
O

A
L

S 

 
Upon completion of the IIT best practices annual review, the following outcomes 
should be achieved: 

External stakeholders will share with LETCSA staff and Commissioners their 
concerns or requests regarding the IIT best practices. 
Relevant statutory updates will be addressed and incorporated to ensure the 
program is in compliance. 
The Commissioners and LETCSA staff will make efforts to ensure the review 
occurs during the calendar year and does not continue into the following year. 

 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
S 

  
Review external stakeholder input 

Address concerns and questions from committee members to stakeholders 
regarding input and edit requests 

Provide Commissioner input to WSCJTC staff to incorporate ahead of the full 
Commission review and reach a general consensus 
Assist with LETCSA staff’s report of ad hoc committee work to the full 
Commission at the regularly scheduled Commission meeting as needed 

 

D
E

L
IV

E
R

A
B

L
E

S  
Inter-Office Communication (IOC) Memo from LETCSA staff at the September 
Commission meeting 
Track changes version of best practices document of new edits 
A clean version of the best practices document with accepted track 
changes/edits incorporated into document 
Completed actions outline of all hosted meetings during review period 
Verbal report from Commissioner representative of the ad hoc committee 
Collated stakeholder input with details and response 



 

 

 

Ad Hoc Committee Review Process 
The table below details the review process for the IIT best practices and includes timeframes 

and the lead person(s) for each step. 
 

IN
P

U
T

 

  
From January to May, WSCJTC staff will collect stakeholder 
input and meet with representatives as needed. Anyone may 
provide input during this period. However, it must be 
submitted by May 31 of the calendar year to be considered. 

 

L
E

A
D

 

  
 

LETCSA 
staff 

 

R
E

V
IE

W
   

The IIT best practices ad hoc subcommittee will meet with 
WSCJTC staff and representatives of stakeholder groups in 
June through August to discuss proposed edits. Stakeholders 
may be present to address Commissioner concerns. 

 

L
E

A
D

 

  
LETCSA 
staff and 

ad hoc 
committee 
members 

 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

   
At the regularly scheduled Commission meeting, LETCSA 
staff will present the proposed edits and work of the ad hoc 
subcommittee. The work plan deliverables will be completed 
at this stage. 

 

L
E

A
D

 

  
 

LETCSA 
staff 

 

A
D

O
P

T
IO

N
   

The Commission will either request additional stakeholder 
consultation or approve proposed edits. If additional 
stakeholder consultation is required, the Commission will 
have the goal of adopting the edits in December. 

 

L
E

A
D

 

  
 
 

Commission 

 

R
E

P
E

A
T

 

  
 

The ad hoc subcommittee will be involved in the additional 
consultation as outlined in this process. 

 

L
E

A
D

 

  
LETCSA 
staff and 

ad hoc 
committee 



 

 

 

Additional Information 
 

  Important Dates  
 
 

Stakeholder input is received until May 31 of the relevant calendar year. This is 
a hard deadline for the review to be considered at the September Commission 
meeting. Input may be provided to LETCSA staff at any point during the year. 
Anything submitted after that date is considered on a case-by-case basis and 
potentially would have to wait until next year. The ad hoc committee may 
initiate their review of input and edits before this date as well. 

 

The ad hoc committee should complete its review in time for the regular 
September Commission meeting. If there are additional questions and/or 
input at that meeting, the best practices will be presented at the December 
meeting for final review and adoption. The Commissioners on the ad hoc 
committee should assist staff in communicating with other Commissioners 
and advocate for the work achieved during the review period.  

 

  Input Guidance  
 
 

Law enforcement and non-law enforcement groups both have the opportunity 
to provide edit requests to staff. The Office of Independent Investigations will 
also be participating in this process. Staff will directly collect input and host 
separate meetings with stakeholders before presenting to the ad hoc 
subcommittee. Input may be provided in meetings, in email or the post, over 
the phone, etc. Writing an email is the preferred method of input. 

 

Stakeholders that submit input should make attempts to provide solutions 
when possible. If the individual does not have a solution, they would still be 
welcome to submit their input for review. The purpose of the annual review is 
to identify areas in the best practices that need to be modified for various 
reasons. Unless there are major statutory changes, significant revisions will 
not occur during this process. 

 

May 31 
Deadline for 

stakeholder input 

September 
Goal for Commission 

adoption of edits 



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 1 of 9 

W A S H I N G T O N  S T A T E   
CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 

1 9 0 1 0  1 S T  A V E N U E  S O U T H ,  B U R I E N ,  W A  9 8 1 4 8  
 
 

 
COMMISSION MEETING 

Wednesday, September 13, 2023  
10 AM 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: 
De’Sean Quinn (Chair), Councilman, Tukwila  
Penelope Sapp (Vice Chair), Chief of Corrections, Kitsap County Sheriff’s Office  
Ken Roske, Chief, Pasco Police Department 
Erik Scairpon, Chief, Marysville Police Department 
Ryan Dreveskracht, Attorney Presiding over Law Enforcement Practices and Accountability 
Mike Webb, Attorney General Designee  
Tim Reynon, Tribal Representative, Puyallup Tribe   
Darryl Barnes, Officer or First Line Supervisor  
Nickeia Hunter, Citizen at Large 
Walter Kendricks, Citizen at Large – East of Cascades 
Annalesa Thomas Citizen at Large  
Trishandra Pickup, Citizen at Large 
Sonia Joseph, Citizen at Large  
Katrina Johnson, Citizen at Large  
Bart Logue, Civilian Oversight over Law Enforcement    
 
WSCJTC STAFF PRESENT: 
Monica Alexander, Executive Director  
Renee Berry, Executive Assistant 
Jerrell Wills, Deputy Director 
Lacey Ledford, Legislative Liaison  
Megan Saunders, Manager, Communications  
Mike Devine, Manager, Certification Division  
Valerie Jenkins-Weaver, Program Manager, Certification Division  
Alex Buijs, Program Manager, LETCSA  
Kimberly Bliss, Assistant Director, Certification Division 
Jennifer Pendray, Program Manager, Coroner/ Medical Examiner  
Norma Gastelum, Confidential Secretary  
Ed Wade, Assistant Director, Support Services 
Bart Hayes, Manager, Advanced Training Division  
Derek Zable, Records Manager  
Kayla Wold, Hearings Coordinator 
 
OPENING 
De’Sean Quinn, Commission Chair  

Chair Quinn called the meeting to order at 10:03 AM  



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 2 of 9 

Renee Berry conducted a roll call of the Commissioners. A quorum was present.  

Chair Quinn thanked the Commissioners for being present and welcomed them to the meeting. 
He commended Director Alexander on excellent leadership and congratulating her for the 
2023 Governor’s Award for Outstanding Leadership award nomination.  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT   

Monica Alexander, Executive Director 

Director Alexander reminded the Commission of first graduating class from the WSCJTC 
Pasco Regional Academy on 9/14/2023. She thanked Commissioner Roske for the 
partnership and support with the regional academy. WSCJTC is working on opening the next 
regional academies in Skagit and Clark counties. Director Alexander gave updates on the 
status of the future regional academies and their importance of allowing more people to have 
access to training and still be able to go home to their families each day. The goal is also to 
reduce wait times for attendance in the Basic Law Enforcement Academy (BLEA). 
Commissioner Barnes asked if there was an update regarding regional Corrections 
Academies. Director Alexander explained that the BLEA regional academies are the priority 
due to the legislative funding, staffing, and campus space. She stated that the Correctional 
Academy class size has been increased to help decrease wait times. 

Kimberly Bliss was introduced as the new Certification Assistant Director. 

CERTIFICATION REPORT 

Mike Devine, Certification Division Manager  

Mike Devine provided an update on the Certification Report. He provided an edit to the month 
of June. Instead of intake of 49, it should list 70. Commissioner Reynon asked for clarification 
on when the data was pulled for the report. Mike Devine responded that they are the current 
statistics on the report. Commissioner Joseph asked if the June and July stats roll over. Mike 
Devine explained that they are the current monthly case statistics. Chair Quinn asked to clarify 
if the stats represent an action. Mike Devine confirmed that the numbers represent an action 
taken. Chair Quinn asked about the category of “lack of jurisdiction”. Mike Devine gave 
examples of cases that do not fall under the WSCJTC’s statutory authority. Commissioner 
Logue asked for the stats of cases after they are sent to the Attorney General’s Office and have 
completed the hearing process. Mike Devine responded that this can be provided. 
Commissioner Webb asked a clarifying question if the data pulled was “point of time” statistics. 
Mike Devine confirmed that they were. Commissioner Webb asked if the retroactive reviews 
were complete or pending. Mike Devine explained they are beginning to seat hearing panels 
under the new law. Commissioner Scairpon asked if there is a complaint against federal law 
enforcement, does the complaint get forwarded to the appropriate jurisdiction. Mike Devine 
confirmed that it does. Commissioner Thomas asked to have a glossary created of the terms 
being used for the Certification Report. Mike Devine confirmed that a glossary will be created. 
Commissioner Thomas inquired that now that the division is fully staffed with additional 
investigators, how will the backlog of cases be addressed? Mike Devine answered that the 
Certification Division is not currently fully staffed. He gave an update on the investigator 
positions and current case load stats. The Certification Division is also in the process of 
purchasing a more advanced case management system. Commissioner Reynon asked if the 



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 3 of 9 

case monthly numbers listed in the report were cumulative. Mike Devine explained the monthly 
numbers and the intake process. Under the review process, the case numbers carry over. 
Commissioner Logue asked a clarifying question regarding intake plus current case numbers 
and those that are sent out. In addition, he asked if investigators were having to ask for 
additional documentation from what was initially provided. Mike Devine confirmed that at times, 
additional information is requested by investigators.  

OLD BUSINESS 

WAC language for the Coroner/Medical Examiner Certification & Scope of Authority 

Jennifer Pendray, Program Manager, Coroner/ Medical Examiner and Derek Zable, Records 
Manager  

After the last Commission meeting, staff engaged the AG based on the recommended 
language. We first set to determine if the recommended language was within the scope of 
authority provided to the WSCJTC. Unfortunately, much of the language was outside that 
scope. These conversations helped staff amend the WAC language to the authority provided to 
the WSCJTC in RCW 43.101.480. Also, the powers provided in RCW 43.101.080 provide no 
additional authority. 

Jennifer Pendray gave a review of the development of WAC 139-27 for RCW 43.101.480. This 
requires the Commission to certify successful completion of medicolegal forensic investigation 
training required or exemption from the training requirement. Changes were made to the WAC 
from the suggestions from the last Commission meeting. The language was discussed, and the 
Attorney General’s Office was consulted. Expanding scope beyond training is not permitted 
under the RCW.  

Amended WAC Language: 

WAC 139-27-010(2)(b): Removal of (b) from Good standing due to a lack of legal authority to 
have ethics requirements as a condition of certification.   

WAC 139-27-020(3): The notice of ineligibility was added to establish the responsibility of the 
agency to notify the commission of ineligibility of a certificant at any time during the certification 
period.   

WAC 139-27-120: Added to require the WSCJTC to collaborate with interstate and local 
agencies regarding certification eligibility regarding the status of their required industry licenses 
and/or certifications. 

Decrease in re-certification time: The timeframe between recertification was reduced from 
five years to three years (with a corresponding decrease of continuing education from 45 hours 
to 30 hours). This was done to reflect the concerns by the commission of a long period between 
re-certification and subsequent confirmation that the certificant has maintained their good 
standing.  

Commission Scairpon expressed his thanks to Jennifer Pendray for clarifying the 
Commission’s questions regarding the scope of the RCW. Commission Reynon asked a 
question regarding if the certification training requirements were included within the WAC 



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 4 of 9 

amendments and within the scope of the Commission. Jennifer Pendray confirmed yes. 
Commission Logue asked what happens if a complaint regarding coroner/medical examiners 
comes through to the WSCJTC portal. Jennifer Pendray explained that medical examiner 
complaints would go to the American Board of Pathology. 

Chair Quinn called for public comment. None received. 

Vice Chair Sapp moved to approve the WACs. Commissioner Scairpon seconded the 
motion.  Commission Reynon asked a question regarding a suggestion he made at the 
previous Commission Meeting regarding curriculum under WAC 139-27-070 and not adding 
cultural competency training to the list. Jennifer Pendray explained that it is already included in 
the Next of Kin training. The motion passed unanimously. 

Independent Investigation Team (IIT) Best Practices 

Alex Buijs, Program Manager, LETCSA 

Alex Buijs provided a timeline of the IIT Best Practices document. At the June 2023 
Commission Meeting, the final approval of the proposed edits was postponed so that WSJCTC 
staff could coordinate with the Office of Independent Investigations (OII) and ensure the 
document aligns with their agency statute and practices. Representatives from IIT leadership 
also participated in discussions regarding these final edits. 

Page 4 – Involved Officers 

Current proposed language: “There shall be no communication (in any format) between any 
involved officer(s), witness officer(s), or other officer(s) until all interviews have been conducted 
by the OII or IIT.”  

New proposed edit: “Communications on scene between involved officer(s) and other witnesses 
should be limited to statements made for immediate operational and/or safety needs. There 
should be no additional communication about the incident until all interviews have been 
completed by OII or the IIT or statements have been provided thereto.” 

Commission Reynon commended the coordination of the OII and IIT. He asked about the 
Commission subcommittee and the need to be able to review Commission materials. Alex 
Buijs explained her understanding was that the Ad Hoc Committee was focused on the 
interview considerations. Commissioner Logue relayed his appreciation of the work done. He 
asked if the stakeholder’s questions and concerns have been captured and addressed. He also 
reiterated the importance of the subcommittee but stated that the annual review will be 
occurring soon. Alex Buijs gave the timeline of stakeholder engagement. Commissioner 
Logue stated as long as she can affirm that stakeholder engagement has occurred, he is 
satisfied with that. Commissioner Scairpon expressed that he enjoyed working on the 
subcommittee and there is benefit to the document moving forward. Chair Quinn reminded the 
Commissioners that previously the document was ready to be approved but needed additional 
stakeholder engagement. Alex Buijs asked if the annual review of the IIT Best Practices will 
include the subcommittee. Chair Quinn suggested it depending on the need for it. 
Commissioner Scairpon recommended moving through the material to discuss. 
Commissioner Reynon stated the importance of being able to fully review each draft. 
Commissioner Logue expressed his wiliness to assist in the process. He appreciated the 



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 5 of 9 

summary document that was provided. Chair Quinn stated he would like a pre-briefing before 
the briefing with involvement of the subcommittee. Alex Buijs reminded the Commission of the 
upcoming annual review to further make edits.  

Page 4 – Involved Officers 

New proposed edit: “Communications on scene between involved officer(s) and other witnesses 
should be limited to statements made for immediate operational and/or safety needs. There 
should be no additional communication about the incident until all interviews have been 
completed by OII or the IIT or statements have been provided thereto.” 

Alex Buijs shared that comments were previously provided from IIT Commanders and with 
consultation with the OII, their edits were agreed upon. Commissioner Reynon asked for 
clarification in regard to the “no communication” to “communication for operational and safety.” 
Alex Buijs responded that there were constitutional rights that were expressed to us. 
Commissioner Logue gave an example of the need for communication at the scene. 

Commissioner Logue moved to approve Page 4 as written.  Commissioner Joeseph 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

Page 5 – Involved Agency Responsibilities  

Current proposed language: “a. The notification to the OII and IIT should simultaneously occur. 
If the OII accepts the investigation, the IIT shall still be notified and respond to the scene of the 
incident. The involved agency would relinquish control of the scene to the IIT in accordance with 
RCW 43.102.120.”  

New proposed edit: “a. The OII receives the initial notification of the incident and the need to 
respond in accordance with RCW 43.102.120. If the OII accepts the investigation, the IIT shall 
still be notified of the incident in accordance with WAC 139-12-030(1)(b).” 

Commissioner Jospeh asked a clarifying question about the process of accepting the 
investigation. Alex Buijs responded that the OII makes the initial determination and has the 
authority during the investigation in alignment with the RCW. Commissioner Logue asked if 
during the annual review, if additional edits can be included to the IIT Best Practices document. 
Alex Buijs confirmed. Commissioner Reynon asked if we are hoping for a uniformed 
approach to incidents. Commissioner Scairpon explained that the IIT Best Practices document 
is a best fit given the resources in the area. Alex Buijs stated the edits align the document with 
RCW and WAC. Commissioner Scairpon stated that notifications have started, but the 
response from the OII has not. Once the response from the OII is initiated, work will be required 
again to align the document. Commissioner Roske stated that the IIT Best Practices are good 
recommendations.  

Commissioner Kendricks moved to approve the edits as written.  Vice Chair Sapp seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

Commissioner Kendricks asked when specifically, is the document up for annual review. 
Chair Quinn reiterated the need for the process for annual review. Alex Buijs stated the 
original document was released first September 2020. The review began in March of 2022 with 



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 6 of 9 

stakeholders. She asked if the future annual review would involve the subcommittee. Chair 
Quinn responded yes.   

Current proposed language: “2. … Statements made to the involved agency supervisor should 
be extremely brief and limited…” 

New proposed edit: “2. … Public safety statements made to the involved agency supervisor 
should be extremely brief and limited…” 

Current proposed language: “a. The public safety statement can only be administered by the 
employer of the involved officer. If the public safety statement starts with, “You are being 
ordered/directed/compelled to answer the following questions…” The involved officer’s 
responses to these questions are considered compelled, and they cannot be considered by the 
IIT Investigators. If public safety information is obtained voluntarily, it may be used by the IIT.” 

New proposed edit: “a. A public safety statement may be a compelled statement. Prior to 
disclosing the contents of a public safety statement to OII or the IIT, the involved agency shall 
describe the context, including whether the involved officer was told he or she was being 
ordered/directed/compelled to answer any questions. If public safety information is obtained 
voluntarily, it may be used by the OII or IIT.” 

Commissioner Joseph asked if the difference was including the language “public safety” and 
in the second section, it describes the differences. Alex Buijs confirmed.  

Vice Chair Sapp moved to approve the edits as written.  Commissioner Dreveskracht 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   

Page 6 – Involved Agency Responsibilities  

Current proposed language: “5. Give all evidence in their possession to the OII or IIT.”  

New proposed edit: “5. Provide evidence as requested to the OII or IIT as lawfully and legally 
required.” 

Commissioner Scairpon moved to approve the edits as written.  Commissioner Thomas 
seconded the motion.  Commissioner Reynon asked a question regarding the edit for not 
giving all of the evidence or the reason behind the inclusion of “lawfully and legally required.” 
Commissioner Pickup asked why all the evidence would not being included. Commissioner 
Scairpon gave scenarios where this may be the case. Alex Buijs stated that it is covered in the 
next proposed edits. Commissioner Pickup requested that future packet have listed changes 
from the draft to the final materials provided for Commission meeting. Alex Buijs responded 
that the only difference between the draft and final meeting packet was that her presentation 
notes were included. Commissioner Johnson reiterated the need to have listed changes from 
the draft and final, as well. Commissioner Joseph stated her concerns for reviewing and 
approving the entire IIT Best Practices document in the current Commission meeting. Renee 
Berry stated that the timetable of receiving the meeting materials were agreed upon in the 
bylaws. Commissioner Reynon started it would be helpful to identify new information when the 
final meeting packet has been sent and a redline version of edits included. Chair Quinn 
requested a process improvement of the meeting packet to include redline versions.  



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 7 of 9 

Commissioner Webb proposed a motion to approve the edits with the understanding that the 
next quarterly meeting there will be more time to discuss the annual review process. 
Commissioner Scairpon seconded the motion. Executive Director recommended approving 
the document and moving forward including redline versions of edits. Commissioner Scairpon 
told the Commission that the current document in place is deficient and doesn’t reference the 
OII. Commissioner Kendricks asked if what is being asked is moving the document forward, 
with the recommendation of the Executive Director, with the expectation of future edits as 
needed. Chair Quinn confirmed. Commissioner Thomas requested a date set for the annual 
review. Commissioner Kendricks asked if the Chair had the authority to request special 
meetings. Chair Quinn confirmed. Commissioner Logue summarized that the previous 
document was brought forward but asked for further stakeholder and OII feedback. That has 
been completed and incorporated into the proposed document. Since the document is a best 
practices document and not a WAC, there is room for maneuvering. Every time the approval is 
pushed off, the Commission is further out of compliance with a WAC. He suggested willingness 
to participate on the subcommittee.  

Commissioner Webb moved to approve IIT Best Practices with the understanding that there 
will be a date chosen for the next annual review and convene a subcommittee for ongoing work 
and feedback.  Commissioner Kendricks seconded the motion. Commissioner Scairpon 
suggested the date of next September for the review. Commissioner Reynon requested that in 
the interim between now and September 2024, the subcommittee would be convened to review 
proposed edits anytime prior to September 2024 to the Commission. The motion passed 
unanimously.   

Executive Director Alexander requested that suggestions to how the Commission would like 
the proposed future process to be compiled and sent out, to send to Renee Berry. 
Commissioner Hunter stated as long as the information clearly shows the language that was 
before and what is being proposed to change, and how the change impacts the outcome, that 
will help the process move forward smoother. Commissioner Thomas asked about the 
subcommittee members. Chair Quinn stated the previous subcommittee would reconvene 
including Commissioner Logue, Commissioner Thomas, Commissioner Hunter, 
Commissioner Pickup, Commissioner Reynon, Vice Chair Sapp, and Commissioner 
Scairpon. 

Commissioners took at break at 11:51 AM. The Commission meeting resumed at 12:04 PM. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Meeting Minutes  

Chair Quinn called for review and approval of the meeting minutes from the June 14, 2023, 
Commission Meeting.  

Vice Chair Sapp moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Kendricks seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

Canine Evaluator Application 

Valerie Jenkins-Weaver, Certification Operations Manager 



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 8 of 9 

Valerie Jenkins-Weaver stated that the request is for the approval of Corporal Nathan Lerma 
from Mill Creek Police Department to be certified as K-9 Evaluator 

She stated that all the officer is in good standing and in compliance with WSCJTC training 
standards.  

Commissioner Reynon motioned to approve. Commissioner Hunter seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously.   

 

Limited Authority WACs 

Valerie Jenkins-Weaver, Certification Operations Manager, Lacey Ledford, Legislative Liaison 
and Derek Zable, Records Manager 

The intent of these WAC changes is to update WAC 139-01-310, WAC 139-05, and WAC 139-
06 to incorporate limited authority peace officers’ certification requirements under RCW 43.101 
after the passing of Substitute House Bill 1132. The WACs also received overall clean-up to 
enhance clarity, improve public comprehension, and edit minor grammatical errors. 

WAC 139-01-310 - Definitions for Title 139 WAC 

WAC 139-05-200 - Requirement of basic law enforcement training for officers 

Commissioner Reynon asked if the revisions to the WACs were to add limited authority peace 
officers. If so, should “Washington” be included. Valerie Jenkins-Weaver responded that she 
didn’t think so. He further asked about “supplemental training being necessary by the 
Commission. Valerie Jenkins-Weaver referred to Substitute House Bill 1132. 

WAC 139-05-210  Process for equivalency 

WAC 139-06-020  Agency reporting requirements—Force, separation, and investigation. 

WAC 139-06-040  Investigation and appeal—Procedures for misconduct. 

WAC 139-06-050  Statement of charges and notification for hearing. 

WAC 139-06-070  Conference and hearings procedures 

WAC 139-06-100  Outcomes for determinations of misconduct- Denial, suspension, probation, 
revocation, retraining, or dismissal of the statement of charges 

Chair Quinn called for public comment. None received. 

Commissioner Kendricks moved to approve the WACs. Commissioner Johnson seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

Hearing Panel Applications 

Derek Zable, Records Manager 



     
Commission Meeting – September 13, 2023                       Page 9 of 9 

Derek Zable requested approval of hearing panel applications: Mon-Cheri Barnes, Member of 
the Public; Alicia Briones, Expertise Police Accountability; Adam Paczkowski, Expertise 
Background in Police Accountability, and Michael Morrison, Sheriff.   

Commissioner Joseph asked if it is a volunteer position or paid positions. Derek Zable 
responded that they are volunteer positions. Vice Chair Sapp motioned to approve. 
Commissioner Joseph seconded the motion. Commissioner Kendricks asked if the 
applicants were in good standing and meet all requirements. Derek Zable responded that Kayla 
Wold, Hearing Coordinator, confirmed they met all requirements. The motion passed 
unanimously.   

Chair Quinn adjoined the meeting at 12:26 PM.  

 

Next Meeting: December 13, 2023, 10 AM, WSCJTC 
 

Written by: ____________________________________ _____________ 
 Renee Berry, Executive Assistant  Date 
 
Reviewed by: ____________________________________ _____________ 
 Monica Alexander, Executive Director  Date 
 
Approved by: ____________________________________ _____________ 
 De’Sean Quinn, Commission Chair  Date 



























November 16, 2023 

 

Dear Chair Quinn and Director Alexander: 

 

We are writing to ask that Commissioners be allowed to occasionally participate remotely in a 

Commission meeting, rather than in person, when individual circumstances require it.  

 

Background. In the past year some of us have had to miss a quarterly meeting because work, family, 

or community obligations precluded travel to Burien.  It is the travel time that presented the burden. 

We could have participated remotely in a two or three hour meeting, but we could not take the 

additional time to travel to Burien.   

 

To attend a meeting in person, we must lose at least a day of work. Some of us also must make 

overnight childcare arrangements. We are usually able to do this. Unlike the Commission’s public 

employee members (law enforcement, prosecutor, etc.), our role as community Commissioners is 

outside of our professional duties.  The time away is not necessarily compensated so we use vacation 

or take leave without pay. Some of us have not been able to get permission to be away from work, or 

because of our job duties we have been in another state the day of a meeting, or we have had 

unexpected childcare emergencies or special family needs, or we have had to choose between 

exercising treaty rights and traveling to a Commission meeting.  

 

RCW 43.101.030 requires the appointment of seven community members, at least three of whom are 

from historically underrepresented communities, and at least two of the seven must be from east of 

the Cascades.  In order to facilitate the participation of these individuals, a policy that allows 

occasional remote participation seems to be a necessity.  Respect for the diversity among 

Commissioners would also be honored by allowing remote attendance.  It is this very diversity that 

makes the CJTC Commission such a unique and representative governing board. 

 

Law enforcement and other public sector members of the Commission, while perhaps not 

experiencing the same economic consequences of serving as Commissioners that we do, may also 

have personal or professional reasons that once in a while prevent them from travel to Burien for an 

in-person meeting.  

 

Intention. Our desire and intention is to most often attend Commission meetings in person because 

communication and rapport among group members is smoother and more natural when everyone is 

together in the same room. We acknowledge that hybrid meetings can be more challenging. 

However, the effect of an “in person” requirement has been that some of us could not participate at 

all. This is especially consequential since the agenda is usually a crowded one and we only meet 

quarterly. We recognize the value of in person communication but feel that remote participation is 

better than no participation, especially when the Commission meets so infrequently. 

 

Authority. WCPA (Washington Coalition for Police Accountability) has looked into this and 

concluded that neither the CJTC statute, bylaws, nor the Open Public Meetings Act (OPMA) 

mandate a policy requiring attendance in person by a Commission member.  



 

Bylaws. While the Commission Bylaws do expect Commissioners to attend, they do not say 

attendance must be “in person.”  

 

Open Public Meetings Act (OPMA). Recent Covid-era amendments to the OPMA should be 

construed to allow participation remotely, as long as the meeting itself has a physical location. In 

amending the OPMA in 2022, the legislature specifically found and declared that “due to 

technological advances since the 1971 adoption of the open public meetings act, elected officials no 

longer conduct the public's business solely at in-person meetings, but can and do utilize telephonic 

and other electronic methods to efficiently conduct the business of state and local government 

remotely.”  See Chapter 115, Laws of 2022, Section 1. 

 

https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2021-22/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1329-

S.SL.pdf?cite=2022%20c%20115%20§%201. We understand this statute is about access to 

government, and we are glad to see the CJTC Commission meetings being live-streamed.  

Participation by the public remotely, and by a commissioner occasionally seems doable and 

reasonable, and something the “guardians of democracy” should be lifting up. 

 

The Washington State School District Association and the Municipal Research and Services Center 

have both examined the issue of remote attendance and state that as long as a meeting has a physical 

location to accommodate the public, members of the agency’s governing board can join remotely.  See 

page 4 of https://wssda.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Open-Public-Meetings-2022-web.pdf and 

https://mrsc.org/explore-topics/legal/open-government/open-public-meetings-act-faqs#physical-

location.  We would offer that remote meetings are different from occasional remote participation by 

a commissioner and believe the policy we propose would be beneficial to the public, so that the 

community commissioners can fully engage and represent their “constituency.” 

 

Request  We ask the Commission to authorize an individual Commissioner to occasionally participate 

remotely in formal Commission meetings. If this request requires formal discussion or action by the 

whole Commission, we ask that you please put it in the agenda for the December 13 meeting.  

 

Thank you for your attention to this request. We look forward to hearing back from you. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Annalesa Thomas 

Katrina Johnson 

Kurtis Robinson 

Nickeia Hunter 

Ryan Dreverschat 

Sonia Joseph 

Tim Reynon 

Trishandra Pickup 

Walter Kendricks 

https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2021-22/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1329-S.SL.pdf?cite=2022%20c%20115%20§%201
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2021-22/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1329-S.SL.pdf?cite=2022%20c%20115%20§%201
https://wssda.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Open-Public-Meetings-2022-web.pdf
https://mrsc.org/explore-topics/legal/open-government/open-public-meetings-act-faqs#physical-location
https://mrsc.org/explore-topics/legal/open-government/open-public-meetings-act-faqs#physical-location

	Meeting Agenda
	Certification Report
	Certification Report Glossary
	IIT Best Practices Ad Hoc Committee Work Plan
	Meeting Minutes - September 2023
	Certified Canine Evaluation Application
	CJTC Commissioner Remote Participation Request Letter



